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ASSESSMENT OF PENALTY 
 

Under 49 U.S.C. § 60122, Respondent is subject to an administrative civil penalty not to exceed 
$200,000 per violation for each day of the violation, up to a maximum of $2,000,000 for any 
related series of violations.11  In determining the amount of a civil penalty under 49 U.S.C. 
§ 60122 and 49 C.F.R. § 190.225, I must consider the following criteria: the nature, 
circumstances, and gravity of the violation, including adverse impact on the environment; the 
degree of Respondent’s culpability; the history of Respondent’s prior offenses; and any effect 
that the penalty may have on its ability to continue doing business; and the good faith of 
Respondent in attempting to comply with the pipeline safety regulations.  In addition, I may 
consider the economic benefit gained from the violation without any reduction because of 
subsequent damages, and such other matters as justice may require.  The Notice proposed a total 
civil penalty of $187,200 for the violations cited above.  
 
Item 1:  The Notice proposed a civil penalty of $53,800 for Respondent’s violation of 49 C.F.R. 
§ 195.401(a), for failing to operate the Mainline Segment and the Cushing Extension at the 
required level of safety.  TransCanada did not contest this Item but asked that the proposed 
penalty be reduced because (1) it had identified problems with its CP system within six months 
of Phase I of the project being placed in service, (2) it took additional time to implement the 
corrective measures due to circumstances beyond its control, and (3) the company had 
“commenced remediation and mitigation efforts prior to any response or direction from 
PHMSA.”12 I have reviewed the record and the penalty-assessment factors that the Region 
considered in proposing the penalty and believe that the penalty is appropriate.  The Violation 
Report noted, among other things, that the inadequate CP system caused metal loss anomalies up 
to 97 percent of pipe wall loss at one location located within a High Consequence Area near St. 
Paul, Missouri, and that the company’s initial CP surveys showed low CP levels at numerous 
locations.13  In other words, this violation came extremely close to causing a pipeline failure in a 
location that could have resulted in serious damage to life, property or the environment.   
 
Further, the proposed penalty did recognize and take into account Respondent’s efforts to 
address its CP problems.  Under the “Culpability” penalty factor, the Violation Report noted that 
TransCanada took significant steps to comply with the regulation but that it did not achieve 
compliance in a timely manner.14  I fail to see how any of the additional or any other arguments 
presented by the company provide a basis for reducing the proposed penalty.  Accordingly, 
having reviewed the record and considered the assessment criteria, I assess Respondent a civil 
penalty of $53,800 for violation of 49 C.F.R. § 195.401(a). 
 

                                                 
11  The Pipeline Safety, Regulatory Certainty, and Job Creation Act of 2011, Pub. L. No. 112-90, § 2(a)(1), 125 Stat. 
1904, January 3, 2012, increased the civil penalty liability for violating a pipeline safety standard to $200,000 per 
violation for each day of the violation, up to a maximum of $2,000,000 for any related series of violations. 
 
12  Response, at 5. 
 
13  Violation Report, at 8. 
 
14  Id., at 9. 
 






